Little Waldingfield Parish Council

Approved Minutes of the Council Meeting held on Thursday 11 July 2019 at 7.30pm at the Parish Room, Little Waldingfield

Present: Cllr Barbara Campbell (Chair), Cllr Chris White (Vice-Chair), Cllr Stewart Braybrook and Cllr Matt Foster (arrived 7.35pm)

Attendance: Cllr Margaret Maybury (District Councillor), Cllr Clive Arthey (District Councillor), Cllr Colin Spence (County Councillor), Simon Ashton (Parish Clerk) and three Members of the Public

1. Apologies and Approval of Absences

Apologies were received from Cllr Tim Sheppard and his absence was approved.

2. Declarations of Pecuniary or Non-Pecuniary Interests by Members

There were no interests declared by any of the Members.

3. Approval of Minutes of the Previous Meeting on 13 June 2019

Minutes of the previous meeting of the Parish Council on 13 June 2019 were received and approved as a true record and signed by the Chair.

4. Reports by the District Councillors and County Councillor

Cllr Maybury delivered her district council report at the meeting. A copy of the report was promised following the meeting but was not received. Cllr Arthey delivered his district council report and Cllr Spence delivered his county council report at the meeting. Copies of these two reports have been made available at the end of these minutes for information.

5. Contributions by Members of the Public

A general discussion took place regarding Suffolk County Council's current and historical cutting of grass along the village's public rights of way and the responsibility of landowners.

6. Neighbourhood Plan

- (a) Members considered the subject of a response to the Babergh & Mid Suffolk Joint Local Plan for neighbourhood planning groups, which was expected to be published on 22 July 2019, and the submission of a response by 30 September 2019. As Members expressed their concerns about the plan, they agreed to seek the advice of the Neighbourhood Planning Steering Group's consultant and gain feedback from parishioners following a village consultation prior to the submission of the response.
- (b) Members noted that the date of the next meeting of the Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group had been arranged for 9 August 2019.

7. Finance

- (a) Members noted the Lloyds Bank Treasurers account balance of £21,326.41 and the Business Instant account balance of £2,522,69 as at 30 June 2019.
- (b) Payments were authorised in favour of the Parish Clerk's wages and office and personal expenses (£255.68) and Little Waldingfield Parish Room for venue hire (June to July 2019) (£24.00). These payments were approved by Members.

8. Governance

- (a) The Parish Clerk confirmed that Cllr Foster had completed a Declaration of Acceptance form in advance of his part of making any decisions at the meeting.
- (b) The Parish Clerk confirmed that Cllr Foster had completed the BDC Register of Interests in advance of the meeting.
- (c) Members considered the use of the Council's projector by other parties and agreed that a charge of £5.00 would be made by the Council on each occasion on the basis of the hirer's acceptance of damage liability.
- (d) Following a lack of communication following previous correspondence submitted to BDC Heritage by the Parish Clerk, Cllr Maybury agreed to follow up the matter of the restoration of the local post box with Babergh District Council on behalf of the Council.
- (e) Members discussed the recent burglaries in the village, particularly the breaking into sheds, and residents were advised to keep them secure with use of appropriate locks.
- (f) The Parish Clerk at Great Waldingfield Parish Council, as co-ordinator of the SID scheme, had invited LWPC councillors to attend a presentation on data generated by the SID devices in the parishes. Cllr White agreed to attend the session at Great Waldingfield Village Hall on 25 July 2019. The recruitment of a Speedwatch Co-ordinator continued with the wording agreed for a notice to be delivered to residents.
- (g) Both Members of the Council and members of the public discussed the recently announced proposal for the village's 112 bus service to be discontinued from 31 October 2019 following the withdrawal of the subsidy from Suffolk County Council. Members agreed to liaise with other neighbouring parish councils.
- (h) In the hope of retaining the village's 112 bus service, Members agreed to liaise with other neighbouring parish councils by responding to Monks Eleigh Parish Council who had been in touch with parishes to gain support for the continuation of the scheme.
- (i) Members noted that Babergh District Council had changed the day of the recycling and household waste alternating week bin collections to Mondays from 15 July 2019.
- (j) Members considered the co-option of up to two additional members to the Parish Council which continued with the wording agreed for a notice to be delivered to residents. The notice was to share the subject of the recruitment of a Speedwatch Co-ordinator on one side and the co-option of new Council Members on the other side.

9. Highways

- (a) Members agreed that the 30-mph roundel at the Haymarket corner of the village had finally been put in place by SCC Highways.
- (b) Cllr White advised Members that no further progress had been reported by SCC Highways in connection with the overgrown hedge on The Street and the possibility of a dropped kerb along the footpath. An update would be provided at the next meeting.

- (c) Members discussed the overgrown footpath reported by a resident adjacent to Grange House and agreed that this was the responsibility of the landowner. However, Members noted that this work had been carried out earlier in the week. Members also discussed an overgrown footpath round the field between B115 and Arches Farm. Cllr White therefore agreed to report this issue on the SCC Highways portal.
- (d) Cllr Foster confirmed that the knocked down village entrance gate was safe and that he hoped to commence the repair work in September 2019.
- (e) Members considered the proposed wording of an additional response to SCC Highways regarding the flow of lorries and other vehicles along Water Street in Lavenham. Following agreement by Members, the Parish Clerk agreed to submit the response.

10. Consultations

(a) Following discussion, Members agreed not to submit a response to the Ipswich Northern Route consultation which was required to be submitted by 13 September 2019.

11. Matters for Future Consideration

- (a) Review of (i) Receipts & Budget ii) Payments & Budget to 31 August 2019
- (b) Review & Approval of the Council's Bank Reconciliation to 31 August 2019
- (c) Review & Approval of Internal Audit Report 2018/19 Response & Action Plan
- (d) Consideration of Parish Room Venue Hire, Advance Payments & Cancellation Costs
- (e) Consideration of Local Public Rights of Ways, Presentation & Course of Action

12. Dates of the Next Meetings

- (a) 8 August 2019 (Playing Field Pavilion) (Urgent Items & Documents by 31 July 2019)
- (b) 12 September 2019 (Agenda Items & Documents Received by 4 September 2019)
- (c) 10 October 2019 (Urgent Items Only)
- (d) The meeting finished at 10.00pm.

Simon Ashton, Parish Clerk clerk.littlewaldingfieldpc@hotmail.co.uk 12 September 2019

PARISH COUNCIL MEETING, LITTLE WALDINGFIELD 11th July 2019

Babergh Governance

Arrangements for the new Council were confirmed at BDC's Annual Meeting, with a balanced Cabinet drawing on experience across the Council. I continue as leader of the council's Independent Group and the council's representative on the Suffolk Waste Partnership, and have also accepted the role of Deputy Leader of Council and the Planning Portfolio on Cabinet. My first priorities are to deliver a fully compliant and up to date Local Plan as soon as possible, and ensure we maintain a 5 year housing land supply.

Joint Local Plan

On 25th June BDC approved the draft Joint Local Plan (Preferred Options Consultation) for consultation. The consultation will run from 22nd July for 10 weeks (until end of September), so there will be further opportunities to talk to you about it. For Little Waldingfield please note the following pages of the draft document published with the Council papers (page numbering may change in the final consultation version).

SP03, Settlement Hierarchy - LW in 'Hamlet Villages'. (P.34).

SP04 and Neighbourhood Plan areas, LW to accommodate 16 homes (p.43).

Hamlets section - settlement boundary for LW (p.435).

You will notice the proposed extension of the settlement bounday on the eastern side which accords with site SS0874 identified in the 2017 JLP consultation. Presumably this site was considered in the preparation work for your Neighbourhood Plan.

The plan's Development Management Policies (p.61-137) will be of particular interest to the PC because of their importance in the determination of planning applications.

This is the consultation stage, it is <u>not</u> the adopted plan which comes after we have considered consultation responses and produced the Submission Version, which then has to go through Examination in Public before adoption. It is unlikely the new JLP will be adopted before 2021, but it will gather planning 'weight' as it progresses through its various stages.

Clive Arthey

Report from Colin Spence – Suffolk County Councillor Sudbury East & Waldingfield Division – July 2019

The following issues are being considered:

New electric vehicle charging points to be installed in Suffolk

Electric vehicle charging points will be installed at Suffolk Business Park in Bury St Edmunds.

Currently under construction, Suffolk Business Park in Bury St Edmunds has announced that it will explore ways of working with Plug In Suffolk, the UK's first fully open public electric vehicle (EV) fast charging network. Installing EV charging points at the site will be an incentive for potential tenants, customers and visitors.

Plug In Suffolk, launched earlier this year, is a project run in partnership with Suffolk County Council, Stowmarket-based EO Charging, and renewable energy provider, Bulb. It aims to install up to 400 EV charging points across the county at 100 business premises, car parks, hotels and anywhere that EVs could park for a short amount of time. This will make Suffolk a national leader in EV infrastructure.

The fast charging points supplied by Plug In Suffolk do not require any registration, membership or apps - drivers simply park, plug-in and charge using contactless payment.

The overall cost to businesses is negligible and, if used regularly, can even generate a small income. For further information or to apply to join the 'Plug In Suffolk' network head to www.pluginsuffolk.org

Conversations start as county council seeks solutions to bus funding challenge

On 19 June, Suffolk County Council met with representatives from Suffolk's bus operators to see whether they can run a number of bus services without public subsidy. This follows a reduction in the amount of public money available.

The meeting, involving 11 of Suffolk's biggest bus operating companies, follows decisions taken in February 2019 on how to save £13 million from Suffolk County Council's budget, including £340,000 from the authority's passenger transport budget.

This led to a cross-party policy development panel being set up to agree how decisions should be made about the funding of services. A new, fair and thorough set of criteria was adopted in May 2019, including passenger numbers, subsidy per single ticket, integration with other services, the number of entitled students using a service, and the percentage of journeys made by concessionary pass holders.

Of the 211 bus routes currently operating throughout Suffolk, 61 are subsidised by public money. 23 of these will have their public funding removed. This does not mean that these services will necessarily end, just that public funding is no longer affordable.

In 2017/18, the 23 services were responsible for 107,624 single journeys out of a total of 14.9million journeys made across the county. This means that the services are responsible for only 0.7% of journeys per year.

A full list of the affected routes has been published on Suffolk County Council's website **www.suffolkonboard.com** and includes services where the council is currently paying a subsidy of £12.64 per single ticket which equates to over £25.00 per round trip.

Councillor Mary Evans, Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Rural Issues said:

"We need to ensure we spend public money effectively. In reviewing these services against our new funding criteria, we have had to make tough decisions. However, the implementation of the new criteria has enabled these decisions to be made in a robust and transparent way and ensures we consider key measures before making tough calls.

"We are committed to working with bus operators and partners to explore other sources of funding to support these services once SCC funding ceases. We are also open to conversations with community groups and partners to see if local solutions can be developed."

"I recognise the importance of passenger transport and I remain committed to ensuring that Suffolk's residents have access to it."

Following conversations with bus operators and partners, the county council will review the situation at the end of July 2019 before determining next steps. The council aims to have operators taking on these services on a commercial basis from the end of October.

Further £700k available in green grants as Suffolk print firm unveils solar panel installation

Bury St Edmunds-based printing firm, Denny Bros, has installed its new array of solar panels. This should cut their carbon footprint by 10% and draw an income of around £12,000 each year.

The installation of the 150kW array was made possible thanks to a £20,000 grant from Business Energy Efficiency (BEE) Anglia, which provides free support to eligible organisations to help them become more energy efficient. BEE Anglia has given over £1 million to support businesses to install green measures including electric vehicles, insulation and high efficiency machinery.

The success of the BEE Anglia project and high demand from businesses, has resulted in a further £700,000 being made available to support this investment in energy efficiency across Suffolk and Norfolk.

This new injection of funding will enable even more businesses to apply for grants to help cut their energy costs.

Grant funding is just one of the ways that the BEE Anglia project supports businesses to reduce their carbon footprint and save money. It also offers free and independent advice and the chance to accredit your organisation to the Carbon Charter.

Businesses interested in the BEE Anglia Project can find out more and register online at www.beeanglia.org or call 01473 350370.

Why the news of health visitor cuts is not the whole story

On 18 June, Gordon Jones, Cabinet member for Children's Services, Education and Skills, published an opinion piece in response to news about potential cuts to the number of health visitors working in Suffolk. Cllr Jones explained how the current proposals are designed to have a very positive impact on the lives of children, young people and families in Suffolk.

"This is about Healthy Child Services, including school nursing and health visitors, for all children aged between 0 and 19 in Suffolk. In the past, there were two providers covering Suffolk, which meant a different level of service depending on where you live.

I'm pleased to say that after a formal and competitive tendering process, Suffolk County Council's Children's Services directorate won the contract for the whole of the county.

This is great news for us because it provides us with an opportunity to help children be healthy and well from an early age through to adolescence with the support of their families. The new contract went live at the beginning of April.

As with all new services, it is only right we carry out a thorough review of what we provide to ensure that we always deliver the best level of service we can within the money available. Of course, funding is a factor. Due, in part, to a reduction in the amount of money available from the Department of Health, Suffolk's public health grant has fallen by more than £5 million since 2015/16, that's about 17%.

Despite our budget constraints, I am very proud of the new service model we have developed. It has a very clear focus on integrated and partnership working, reducing inequalities and promoting health and wellbeing in our children and young people. It will have a very real impact on the nature of care and support we offer to our younger residents and their families.

We will be increasing our school nursing service by 32% - this equates to 30 new staff positions. Having nurses in schools is incredibly important, especially as we look to increase our support for those young people with poor mental health.

So what will the new service look like? We asked new parents what would improve the service for them and they told us that they wanted more information available online and when they wanted it.

Therefore, for those who receive care from health visitors, there will be a host of new services available. This includes a dedicated phone line, which will be staffed from 8am to 7.30pm, for queries and concerns that new parents may have. Our website will also have lots of new and helpful information.

On Friday, we finished a staff consultation which looked at reducing the number of health visitor posts. The final number has yet to be finalised, but what's clear is that changes like this need to be handled carefully and sensitively.

However, while the number of health visitors may reduce, the number of health visiting appointments that a mum can expect will not. All new mums will see a health visitor twice and then, according to their needs, they will be seen by a health visitor or a healthy child practitioner, and they can visit a clinic for further follow-up appointments.

We know from feedback that many new mums enjoy the social aspect of going to a clinic because they have the opportunity to meet other mums and babies, so we're responding by making them available.

Also included in this new model is an extension of the Family Nurse Partnership, which works with first-time young mothers. Previously this was only offered in Ipswich and Lowestoft, but will now cover the whole of Suffolk.

You will recall that Ofsted recently rated Suffolk's children's services as 'outstanding' and in that spirit we will continue to provide high quality services to keep children and young people in Suffolk safe and well."

Suffolk's Health and Wellbeing Board has committed to tackling poor mental health in Suffolk

On 14 June 2019, Suffolk's Health and Wellbeing Board demonstrated their commitment to tackling poor mental health by signing up to the Prevention Concordat for Better Mental Health.

Working closely with Public Health England, Suffolk's Health and Wellbeing Board is making significant steps towards promoting good mental health and preventing mental health problems.

One in six adults experiences at least one diagnosable mental health problem in their lifetime. This is influenced by the environment in which we are born, grow, live and work - meaning many of these problems can be prevented.

Having good mental health is important because it can help us to be more resilient, feel good and function well, have more positive relationships with those around us, and deal with difficult times now and in the future.

The Prevention Concordat marks the first time agencies across the community and care sectors have come together to make prevention a priority for mental health. So far, 92 organisations representing all sectors have signed up and committed to action.

The commitment from Suffolk's Health and Wellbeing Board includes work to improve people's mental health, including preventing suicide, social prescribing initiatives and a pilot for a new online resource supporting young people aged 16-24.

Little feet take big strides in Suffolk

Nursery children are taking big strides to be more active by embarking on a Little Feet Walking Challenge.

Little Feet is an initiative developed by Living Streets, the UK charity for everyday walking, that helps children aged 2-5 years walk more through a set of fun and engaging activities that also support families in understanding the benefits of active, everyday journeys.

It is supported by the Suffolk County Council-led Most Active County partnership which aims to encourage more people to be more active.

One local nursery taking part is St. Edmunds Catholic Pre-school from Bury St Edmunds.

Suffolk pothole repair scheme to go countywide

A trial scheme to tackle potholes swiftly has been so successful it is being rolled out across Suffolk.

The Suffolk Highways scheme, which started in Ipswich in October 2018, changes how potholes are categorised.

The new system allows engineers to repair potholes close to each other during the same visit, tackling smaller potholes before they can expand.

Previously, they fixed larger holes first and smaller ones at a later date.

The new policy reduces the amount of time workers have to travel between jobs.

Mary Evans, Cabinet Member for Highways on Suffolk County Council, said the scheme would be rolled out permanently across the county this summer.

She said the previous system had been "incredibly complicated", leading to highways workers complaining that they were "driving over potholes to get to potholes".

Mrs Evans said: "The rate you pay the gangs is the same whatever they do, and the material they put in the pothole is the same, so the efficiency savings comes from the travel time.

"I am really pleased - it's about looking at ways the system can be more efficient."

Foster carers for Suffolk children

As a local authority, Suffolk County Council is responsible for more than 800 children in care in Suffolk. The Suffolk Fostering & Adoption service is part of Suffolk County Council, and their goal is to secure families for Suffolk children, either on a short-term or permanent basis. The service has been rated Outstanding by Ofsted.

Fostering is a big commitment, but it is an incredibly rewarding journey. Foster carers can make a real difference to a child's life, providing them with the nurturing home life they need to give them every chance of a happy childhood and to succeed in life.

Suffolk Fostering & Adoption aren't looking for perfect families. They need people with a passion and an ability to provide children in their care with love, patience and a sense of belonging.

When you foster for Suffolk you:

- Give back to your community and offer help and support to the most vulnerable children in Suffolk
- Enrich your own family life by gaining new insights, interests and skills.
- Develop your own skills and career opportunities through support and training, including a Level
 3 Diploma in Childcare.
- Are part of a team the largest family in Suffolk.
- Have access to therapeutic support services for the children you foster and your own family.
- Are given 24-hour support and up to 21 days paid leave.

Suffolk offer competitive financial rewards for foster carers. Fostering for Suffolk really can be a career choice.

To find out what Suffolk Fostering & Adoption Service can offer foster carers:

- Call 01473 264800
- Email fosterandadopt@suffolk.gov.uk
- Visit www.fosterandadopt.suffolk.gov.uk
- Find them on Facebook Suffolk's Fostering Service or on Twitter @suff_fostadopt